
Mike Mayo
Director
Division 1

Steve Ronneberg
Director

Division 2

Gloria Bozza

Dlrector
Division 3

NOR'I'H YLII]A

\AATER-\/ 
DISTRICT

Marieke Furnee
President
Divislon 4

Ann Plumb

Vice President

Division 5

Leona Harris
General Manager

AGENDA

REGUTAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
NORTH YUBA WATER DISTRICT

5:30 PM a THURSDAY o DECEMBER 1L,ZOZ3

NOTICE: THIS MEETING WttL BE PHYSICATLY OPEN To THE PUBIIC AT THE DISTRICT oFFIcE [ocATED AT 8591 tA
PORTE RD, BROWNSVILIE, cA 95919. HOWEVER, THE MEETTNG WtLt AtSo TAKE pLACE VtA ZOOM. MEMBERS
OF THE PUBLIC MAY ATTEND AND PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING VIA VIDEOCONFERENCE AT:

NYWD BoardRoom is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting.

Topic: NYWD BoardRoom,s Zoom Meeting
Time: Dec 21,2023 05:30 pM pacific Time (US and Canada)

Zoom

Meeting lD: 810 2OO2 71,42

Passcode:718044

One tap mobile
+t669444917 t,,SLOZOO27 !42#,,,,*7 1,9044# l)S

+ 16699009 L 2 8,,81020027 1,42#,,,,., 7 1,8044# U S (Sa n J ose)

Dial by your location
o +1 669 4449t7tUS

r +1 669 900 9128 US (San Jose)

Meeting tD: 810 20027t42
Passcode: 718044

Find your local number: https://usO2web.zoom.us/u/kdJhweM4tW

Join



COMMENCEMENT OF

MEETING

ln compliance with the Americans wlth Dlsabllltles Act, lf you are a dlsabled person and you need adlsabillty'related modiflcatlon or accommodatlon to partlclpate ln thls meetln& please contact NorthYuba water Distrlct office staff at 530-575-2567 or fax 530-675-0462. Requests must be made as earty aspossible and at least one-full business day before the start of the meeting.

The Board of Directors shall provide at least twice the allotted time to a member of the public who utillzesa translator to ensure that non-English speakers receive the same opportunity to directly address theBoard' Please contact Distrlct office staff at 530-675-2557 or fax s3o-6is-o462at least 24 hours prlor tothe board meeting so a translator can be provlded. Non-Engllsh speakers are welcomed to provlde thelrown translator.

CAI.L TO ORDER/ROLI CAtt

PLEDGE OF ATTEGIANCE

At the beginning of a regular meetings, the publlc has the opportunities to address the Dlstrlct Board ofDlrectors about matters not on the agenda that are within the jurlsdiction of the Board of Directors. public
comment is llmited to no more than four (4) mlnutes per person, twenty (20) mlnutes total for all speakers.

The publlc has the opportunities to address the District Board of Directors about matters on the agenda,including closed sesslon items. Public comment ls limlted to no more than four (4) minutes per person, twenty(20) minutes total for all speakers for each agendlzed item.

E. CONSENT ITEMS

1' Approval of Minutes for Regurar Board Meeting of Novembe r zz, zozg2. Approval of payrolr for the Month of November 2023r g rr,B42.so(3 pay periods)3. Approval of Bills for the Month of November 2023: S LFOL,gzt,444' warrant # 52-37259, fund # 637, payable to North Yuba water District, in the amount of
S1s0,0oo.0o for Services / Supplies, Bills & payroll

5' warrant # 52-37260, fund i 642, payable to North Yuba water District, in the amount of
$150,OOO.OO for Services / Supplies, Bills & payroll

F. STAFF REPORTS AND RECOMMENDATION

The Board will hear reports by District staff and receive their recommendations for future Board action,including but not necessarily limited to:

OPEN SESSION ACTION
CALENDAR

-2-

A.

B.

c.



Financial Manaqer,s Report

The General Manager will:

1. Update the Board on the Operations Memorandum.

2. Update the Board on projects currently in progress.

3' Application for CEQA Exemption: The Board and General Manager will discuss, and the Board may
possibly take action to approve, a cEQA exemption notice and application for the repair work being
done on the District's water conveyance infrastructure for the purpose of canal stabilization and
water loss mitigation,

President's Special Recoenition Award (JplAl

Legal Counsel's Report:

Legal counsel will update the Board on the District Administration's response to Tod Hickman,s effort topersuade the state water Resource control Board to not renew North yuba's water permits, to dissolve
North Yuba and combine it with the south Feather water and power Agency, so that South Feather can use
North Yuba's money and water to provide the Town of Bangor in Butte county, where Mr, Hickman lives and
owns property, with more water,

Legal counsel will report to the Board on the District Administration's response to Gretchen Flohr, Alton
wright and Tod Hickman's effort to persuade the Butte County Local Agency Formation commission to
dissolve the North Yuba water District and assign all of North yuba's sphere of influence, assets and
customers to the South Feather Water and power Agency.

RATIFICATION OF CONTRACTS;

The Board will discuss and possibly act to ratify an agreement for Elevate public Relations and Marketing,
LLC. to provide public relations/information services for the District.

The Board will meet and possibly act to ratify an agreement for Herr, pedersen, & Berglund, Attorneys at Law

LLP, to act as District Special Counsel for CEeA issues.

UPCOMING BOARD MEETINGS;

The Board will discuss and possibly act upon the General Manager's request to reschedule January,s
regular meeting, and the Board President's request to schedule for a special meeting/public information
meeting.

DIRECTORS REPORTS

J' conference with tegal counsel - Anticipated litigation (3 cases) - pursuant to Government code section
54956.9, subdivision (d), paragraph (3):

The Board will meet in closed session to discuss two anticipated/potential legal actions.

G.

H.

3-

cLosED sEsstoN



RETURN TO OPEN SESSION

REPORT OF CTOSED SESSION ACTIONS

The Board provides the public an opportunity to address the District Board of Directors with a final commentabout matters on the Agenda.

Repeating comment provided at the start of the meeting is not considered .,additional,, comment.

Final Public comment is limited to no more than five (5) minutes total, shared equally by all members of thepublic who wish to speak.

FINAL PUBLIC COMMENT

-4-



NoTlCElThismeetin8willbephysicallyopentott'ep,uti..ttt'.oi'ta.t
meeting will also take place via zoom' Members of the public may attend and participate in the meetlng via videoconference at:

loin Zoom Meeting
Time: Nov 22,2023,05:30 pM pacific Time (US and Canada) Join Zoom Meeting

Join Zoom Meeting
https//us02web.zoom.us/i/89984590369?pwd=a 2J pbkgyM UgxeDVxRitJa EdCRH Btdzog

Meeting lD: 999 8459 0369

Passcode;074384

0ne top mobile
+16699009128,,89984590369fl,,,, *074384fl US (San Jose)

+ 7669 4449L1 t,,99984590369r,,,, r074384fl US

Dial by your location .
+1 669 900 9128 US (San.lose) . +1 669 444 9171 US

Meeting tD: 899 8459 0369
Passcode:074384

Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/k76NFftpr.

COMMENCEMENT OF MEETING

REGUTAR MEETING MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
NORTH YUBA WATER DISTRICT

Held at the District office and zoom
8691 LaPorte Road. Brownsville
Wednesday, November ZZ, ZO23

lncompliancewiththeAmericanswithDisabilitie
modification or accommodation to participate in the meeting, please contaci North yuba water dis$ict office staff at s30-
675'2557 or fax 530'675'0462. Requests must be made as early as possible and at least one-full day before the start of the
meeting' The Board of Dlrectors shall provide at least twice the allotted time to a member of the public who utilizes a
translator to ensure that non-Engllsh speakers receive the same opportunity to dlrectly address the Board,

A. BOARD MEMBER ATTENDING REMOTETY:

ln compliance with Government code sS 54953(f)(2)(A), Board Director Mike Mayo will address the Board to
explain why he is attending and participating in the meeting via zoom.

B. CATLTO ORDER/ROLL CALL

The meeting was called to order at 5:35 pM, at the District office in Brownsville, cA,

NAME PRESENT ABSENT VISITORS INCLUDING:
PRESIDENT

VICE PRESIDENT

DIRECTORS:

GENERAL MANGER

ATTORNEY

Marieke Furnee

Ann Plumb
Gloria Bozza

Steven Ronneberg
Mike Mayo - Via Zoom

Leona Harris

Paul Nicholas Boylan

Charles Sharp, Jon

Messick, Dr, Rulik Perla

C. PLEDGE OF AILEGIANCE:

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by the Board.

D. OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT ON NON AGENDIZED ITEMS:

November 22, 2023, Regular Board Minutes
llPage



The public has the opportunity to address the District Board of Directors about matters not on the agenda. public comment is llmited to
no more than four (4) minutes per person, twenty (20) minutes totalfor all speakers. NoTE: AtL puBUc pARTlctpANTs wtLt BE MUTED UPON
ENTRY INTO THE MEETING AND WItt ONIY BE UNMUTED TO AILOW THEIR COMMENT. TO PROVIDE PUBTIC COMMENT BY
TELECONFERENCE PRESS *9,

PUBtlc COMMENT: Members of the public comments included the irrigation season ol2024.

E. OPPRTUNTW FOR pUBLtC COMMENT -Topics on the Agenda:
Members of the public may address the Board concerning any item on the agenda. No other comments will be allowed. Any member of thepublic wishing to make comment shall identify the agendi item they intend to address, and they will be provided an opportunity to makecomment on that item only. Public comment is limited to no more than two (4) minutes per person, twenty (20) minutes total for all speakers.NorEi ALL PUBtlc PARTICIPANTS wltl BE MUTED upoN ENTRY tNTo rHE MEETTNG AND wtLt oNLy BE uNMUTED To AtLow rHEtR
COMMENT. TO PROVIDE PUBTIC COMMENT BY TETECONFERENCE PRESS I9.

PUBLIC CoMMENT: Members of the public comments included closed session, item 2. and hiring a cEeA lawyer.

F. CONSENT ITEMS

t. Approval of Minutes for Regurar Board Meeting of october 26,2023
2. Approval of Minutes for speciar Board Meeting of septemb er 29, 20233. payroll for the Month of October 2023:942,420.25
4. Approval of Bills for the Month of October 2023:597,777.37

Director Bozza made a motion to approve consent items 1, 2, 3 and 4 with the correction of public
comment, Mike Mayo for general manager to Mike Mayo for Division 1 Director. president Furnee
seconded the motion. The motion was approved with a unanimous vote..

G' STAFF REPORTS AND RECOMMENDATION The Board will hear reports by District staff and receive their
recommendations for future Board action, including but not necessarily limited to:

Financial Manager's Report

t. Review of Cash on Hand and lncome Statements for the period ending October 3t,2023

Heidi, Naether read the Financial Manager's report. Cash on Hand and lncome Statements for the period ending
october 3'J-,2023. Total cash on hand in all accounts including reserves was S6,25g,414,g3. Total income for the
fiscal year to date (July 01, 2023 - october 3t,2023) was g2,189,652.88. Total expenses were S545,273.gg,
leaving a net revenue over expenses of $1,,644,379.00. Expenses out of Reserves/savings year to date totaled
Sgz,qlqll.

General Managers' report/requests:

t. Update the Board on the Operations Memorandum: Attached.

2. Update the Board on projects currently in progress.

General Manager Leona Harris updated the board that the lndiana Ranch Siphon which has been leaking
over20yearswasrepairedandshouldsavethedistrict 1"/2cFsduringirrigationseason. TheHell 4stoutFlume
will be demolished next week, and the Challenge Redwood tank is already removed, All redwood that was
salvageable is at the treatment plant. The Forbestown tank should be relined and completed next week, and pGE
will be here with a light until the streetlight is installed.

Legal Counsel's Report:

Legal Counsel, Paul Boylan discussed the three major problems inherited by the board almost a year ago. The
disrepair of the districts infrastructure, including the Forbestown Ditch which Leona and her staff have addressed

November 22,2023, Regular Board Minutes
2lPage



and continue to make improvements. The erosion of other public agencies that the District works with, one of
which was the State water Control Board and the possibility of losing one or more of the districts water permits.
The district hired a water riShts expert, Gwyn-Mohr Tully, to get the truth of the state of the water permits. What
was learned was the State Board had issued instructions to the district more than 10 years ago which the district
ignored. The district is waiting to see what the state is going to do with the district's applications for extenslon of
the water permits. During this time, it was learned that at least three people appeared before them during public
commentsrecommendingthatthewaterboarddenyourapplicationsanddenythedistrictspermits as part
of a plan to dissolve North Yuba in favor of South Feather Water and power
Agency, whenthiswaslearnedthedistrictsnappedintoaction. LeonaappearedinfrontoftheStateBoard
and on the strength of her presentation, the president of the State Water Board invited us to consult with their
staff, including legal counsel, and we have done so. The relationship with the state water Board has been
improved and repaired. The district awaits to hear of any consequences from the State Water Board. The permits
are secure, and our water is safe.

H. DISCUSSION ITEMS

L. Mission Vision Values statements crafted by Erin Hastey as a result of our workshop.

The board was invited to discuss the Mission Vision Values statement prepared by Erin
Hastey and felt that she captured all that they discussed,

2. Future lrrigation policy Update Workshops

President Furnee asked for suggestions on updating the current irrigation policy. After discussion
it was suggested that after the board, legal counsel and administration have time to review
previous and current policies workshops will be scheduled.

Future District Strategic Plan Workshop

District strategic Plan workshops will be scheduled after the irrigation policy workshops begin,.

Finance Committee -The Board will discuss establishing a District Finance Committee

President Furnee asked Ann Plum to sit on a Finance Committee which will help prepare a more
professional budge. The district was also invited to attend South Feather's budget discussions for
the first time which the finance committee can attend. Vice President plumb accepted a seat on
the Finance Committee,

Entered into closed session at 6:07 p.m.

l. Conference with legal Counsel - existing litigation (2 Cases) - pursuant to Government code section
54956.9, subdivision (d), paragraph (1):

1. South Feather Water & Power Agency v. North Yuba Water District, Sutter County, Superior
Court Case No, CVCS2 I -0002073

2. North Yuba Water District v. South Feather Water and Power District, yuba County Superior
Court Case No. Case No. CVCS21-0001857

J. Conference with legal Counsel -
Anticipated litigation (2 cases) - pursuant to Government Code section 54956.9, subdivision (d), paragraph (3):

3.

4.

November 22,2023, Regular Board Minutes
3lPage



The Board will meet In closed session to discuss two anticipated/potential legal actions.

K. PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT - Speciat Counsel

The Board will meet to discuss and possible act to hire/ratify the retention of Herr Pedersen & Berglund LLp to act
CEQA matters.

The Board will meet to discuss and possibly act to extend and expand the current contract with G.M. Tully to act as
special counsel for all water law related matters.

Returned to Open Session at 6:42 p.m.

L, REPORT OF CTOSED SESSION ACTIONS

Regarding litiSation, the Board met with legal counsel and gave instructions. Regarding public employment the
Board voted unanimously to extend and expand the current contract with G.M. Tully to act as special counsel for
all water law related matters. The Board also unanimously voted to hire/ratify the retention of Herr pedersen &
Berglund LLP to act as special counsel for CEeA matters.

M. DIRECTORS REPORTS

President Furnee will be attending the Aqua Conference in Sacramento next week and plans on attending all
sessions regarding Hydro Power. The Science Charter Academy gave President Furnee an Outstanding Leadership
Award. She has invited the school to present their project to the Board.

The Board provides the public an opportunity to address the District Board of Directors with a final comment
about matters on the agenda. Repeating comment at the start of the meeting is not considered ,,additional
comment". Final public comment is limited to no more than five (5) minutes total, shared equally by all
members of the public who wish to speak.

PUBLIC COMMENT: Members of the public commented on the most efficient infrastructure.

I notounrlrvrrnr 

-l

The meeting was adjourned at 6:48 p.m.

Catherine L. Fonseca, Recording Secretary

November 22,2023, Regular Board Minutes
4lPagc



North Yuba Water District
Monthly Net Payroil Report

TOTAL MONTHTY NET PAYROLL FOR THE MONTH OF NOVEMBER, 2023

TOTAL NOVEMBER, 2023 S 71.842.50

Page 1 of 1



(v)

o

o)o
IEo

I SI-s qrEEEqsREqEB6ssBPE BRsB;l EIE SfrSEESgEEENBxEBRSf, s38:il 5lY ] I I T :'r. Y 'o. P ' Y =- I . 1 "i 3 g" ." 5" Y +gl | 5 5 T r \ : I \ Y YEt I'll

OP
=oi83EEE

2 s o*e.HE 5 ? E 3 39 E F ? E I E + S E : e q ,,fl E*aEuEg; fiE :;c :Igg
g9gEf f 5d, n3? #,6 ter Ei4=
EEBsEFgFEHEHES;$;E E:HE

(5
(L
(g
(L

X
o(oN@o)ol'11

EHHnHHEREH;#s$HHEn frEnH
cr) co co c) (r) o 6 a !D CD CD (f) CO Cf) C9 CO CO CD CO r) (r) e)N N N N N N N N N N N c.i o.i N ql N N N c.i N N Nooo oooo ooCjoctCjb O ooo o oo oS E S.-q q q a S S N N N N N N N N s.r N N N NN N N N N N qr N N N ca c6 ri d A. d - b b ASSeaeeaeeaeaeaaaae AaAa

(/)
Lt-.|

tJJ
Lr

CO
No
N:\
C9

o
E
Gz

t: ct)

.9, h cY)

9=s
6 -v <rt
*OLie.t
PO EE >rg):= a+ ez6ozE

IYY!vyYyytyYtyJi{i< o o o o o() oE +r< j<EEE 6 o o os1 9OOOoooOOoog60)66o)o(D6sqqaqqqaq 55 Sqqq Eqqq
.p-.L-' EEEEeIEE-rii--f EEE EEEEE E 1 1 1 1 1 g q 1- 8 = E E E o-- d n i o_ L o_= = =_J J m c0 m m m m c0 m o i : O : in ii in 6 iE iE ii

o
0)

O

(,
o.

o-(!
tJJ

E

,To!,
EDca2 E o, E EE

3 E .= ; oa
B t E P ?E
o c = E o $ tio- -t s ; E -6 .E tsg ;YTpbfl 6oE i E;" E *E?: Stf Egq)=0)c3 ig.EpH,*E eEss:E;s F#:E5gq mEgH#qpe:E :,^g.gE$JE; aSpfr$t
i F s t E c fE E 5 4 #5 E EE }} E F r u HEs f E5
E



(9

o
(\l
oo
t!o

NOO
Nlr)O+|-oi
NO)N(o(o
(o(ol

lt

99aoroo@NO(OOCO(oCOOAoocD@(o()-r)-(ocoNo
t?istg1+arrjN-N;d-S!g\acoN(oNroNbN06=@NrtrlNCqtrlcoo''-bocoo)'goi-':.j;qr;j

Orrrrri+
(, cf)

J
J
ooo'=
0)a
(E'o
Coc
iI
o

o!+f-L
mOo
3bPE5'r
I Eb

d?EF..EEg
S,iZo>ol'-,
=PO-Oirr')-oP:6;x".0=a5cir; g, Eh E $ gr
E p"' E E; hSI E8HEoc').E 3o LL-Y! EF

tfi=zg sA EEt+arf;
tooozax.coiouil-o

o
E(!
z

F..@O
NNN(o(o(o@(o(o
NNN

ca co c9
NNNooo
NNN
NNN

oooooo--^^i=rE(D@6664c.q<qtr<jXgDKRKRK KS KRdR,f,fR
a a c) cD cD cq co o c9 co co cq co c.)arqrqrNNNNNNNNNNsi9qqaoooooociocjo
SSSSS E1N NNNNNNN
€ododdd 66 ddb66(oF-999aooo-o+=;

xlloooooo
OOO
EEE(LO_O_

in in i5

)<xyiYtYYylooOOOOoootlyxoo(l)ooooo60()()0();'c-cE.cccc-cOOOO-eeeee ee qe5655q
EEEEE EE EEEtiEErl-cro_rl-L(Lo_o_====o_
in iE i! i5 i5 i! in in in j j j j E

E

z

o
ll,o

'i 
E)

-o tn c"l

9=s
6 .y c.t

=OLies
PO E

= 
>rg)>= x

-YYi iz6oz= o
o.
F

o g' fi* - ' b - -=5
E :--EE,E * F gfios-;E=-Es
f;,€g;,: F ? € *tifl**fi:*g
uEfi*;g* ,E g; .5 F:EaEEEBfE

5EE3;Eg E .EE a;a F ; ?:EaEserE;

iglfE;E :, ; E 
g, Ee; E E H $E gEiF[Eg?EHg

tAgIEi€ EEEEg# Ef,f EEFEE Fii$Ege$E3E $

;;;;ps; # ; s s i* s es .g s F } fi ; Fa8#gfigr;83 q E



(t)

o
(,
q)
o
G
o.

s E B B B B s B s D B 8 Blsl+l+oj c.j ro c.i c.j + ^i g R E B E Slls3gu3s3e-.Be rY;+r.llBlElB
l*l*l*,

;l**e

E I 6c o)E g ,186 e

E A EFE E 8
,\cvcf,i69;Yduo6Q=6e-/\EC:-oE6A
=o6'E"tf,tdT,3gsg @ €3F<orroEYSgoF''€E =a H;EggEE #EE;*: E sF#EgEEqngEpE

E e N cq <- rO @ F.* $ (O > > (O t- @EE E 33EEEe338SEEE!L (o (o (o @ @ 6 := 6 (c) i' i- (c, (o (oNNNNNNNNONNTUl'xNN&

a !o co co cq !2 !o c, (o c, (o (r) cD cf) cq coc)l N N N N ql ql qll N N c.i c.i N N N NaqAooOoc,oc,odoctocj(\NNNNNNNNNN-NNNNDi F trNN-nFbEbijijijSEs\ N N N N N s\ N N Co - co co co co a6

IYYIIYf<YJYY
99ooo()c)c,yYyy)<666oOOOOG)OOoooood)d)n1
.c-c-C-C!CECOOOOoF;;ee e eeeee55665qaqEE E EEEEE}.tAAAEEEr o_ o_ rl- o- o_ o_ rl- E E E 

= 
E o- o_ d

iE il in in in in in ii j j j j i m 6 o

E3 sl

IEr =l
:-ro
d-Ycl r

SEI *l
{:,5 "l
>= AgEz Ii€ 

$l

E
GG
E=oL{u
tO1 ?a

a 5 * Es?'g B; ;EEdx e I 66oE: e E- | g E nE € *E E ' b s,fi F.o s ;: - E q E' h
P o, .=ii E E; #6'0#d E pz E E E n l{ o s a

Fs;=Essn Eeo5xq EEEq: ,L Es I p E g 
E E E F : B C ; E : E

t E tE i* i e a t s E F r e E s 
= 

I
P 6 :u EE 6 g q 5 E F F # E g g E f E

F
P



o

oo(!
0.

N
c.)
ri
co

o
O)
cD-

O)
c\
N
q
N
N

c.i

s
Nq
FT

co
oi
CO
o_

N

$
O)
+$(o
u)(o
@

l.io(o
+
$
@

!9Aotr)Oooor)o)Ir)!d-o
1.-aNdosi oddc.jN,rja(l)aF.r:-F-@o()co@No-

9O1..@r-OO{o-toO-ql N(o(o\f,N@CoNON:tr)NCONrr);=
cr)

:-$Oro@r)oo)t-(o@(ob)\oloqojgqod@Nco;aD(9r)o$r)co$(c)o);;ilN
o

f.-(oo@coN-ocor)@o)@\trloNu:NLrltooo6tr:6
e@ol'.-o)oo@<-N@;ari-@o$o;Nor.)i,cD(ooo)co@@Noi-
Fjc.i$trlcoriN+---rdroNN'f.\iN

9O)NO):f,Lr)COOCOoNq@Lr)F-oco(otr)@N;6b
a\(QNocoF-NO(or.r)oroq)9oq)cocDo@NNF@co

Sq1o1.14io-drj+Nrjri
co- N
N

LAE-ONl..-cootr)qaLr)ro(ooooNNNOt_
!!9AO)o)No)NN$rtcoS!rloocf)$.tNlr)o)co+o5ao)F-lr)N(o.fo)ocooco6

tr)-

N

(oq
t-(o

o
N
tcr"

co

s
F-

o

QaaoooooF-oocooooooNCOO
e-9a;rjo+ojcjoAoo(oroooONoo)oo|.c)tr)+ohr-
N-OOoiO(ot.OOl.-AaC.)(oNi.t

NN(o.$N

-l $ N d d d d b" r s d f6lo9ou?cjciqqdci\oloao(o-coo5F-tI o o (o o a -tI CD (f)

Il dj @

btsl
I

f.-lr)oooooF.60s.:\qqqq.:F-N-@
eoo@odojc.jrjorjc9No)o)NS$NIO
@ridcci ON

eaaoooro(otr)ocoe(oooooc")oN-lr)
o$oootr)@(oNoorn-r)orr)C)\f66

@NOroNNo+
@Nori-NF.Oc.)(o- st

f.-oooot+coooN$oooor)@lr)oN
aaodorjNoiocjrcj@@roo)ra)o+6-osoqN$lr)oNod
(ocof-lr)u)t-'jo)

N l'.- a cg o.i\,+

q,
o,
E
o
G

tr
tr

l'l'

!ul$

F.\
@
co-
Nr)

ool
o
Lr)

-t
co-
N

(o
o?
too
lr)
co
|\..
$-

@
!o
(o
N
o)
d
rf)
(o-

F-q
CO
|.r)-

o
tr)-
N

o
o,
!,
o
o
o
g,

o
cn

=o
oF

(Y)(\
oz
:-)

Fu
O ,*'

.. o- i\i
EHA
xr3
b6 E
g< t
E==
=-:ffxsru! II crtzo->

J-<5z
f

j

o^i5g
E S=

^IOOO9-FE** +-Eh id;o #Eee*E*sE.f;a *Effr -Eco-G

trotz =E&.jd! EqtEtE F.E *- ggs- :sEgE;fl PEgs;!-E:'! o

E EEl?riqf E$C *<;sEgEE!ggeE
* . sHEE;dEeHHE 

E 
= 

gHHHfiil8fiHHs;AfrEtr:oo-FatNN6i6i-

;E P fr,f E 
E.p ,E E.OEE qoo *!

6z

,9o(!
o
E
f
oo



North Yuba Water District

2022-23 EXPENSES OUT OF RESERVES/SAVINGS (July 01.,2}z3-November 30, ZOZ3)

MEMO DATE

AMOUNT
BILLED/PAID UP

TO DATE ANNUAL BUDGET

L.U.l. Union Retirement Stabilization Fund

Additional Legal

Public Relations

Grant Pursuits

Special Projects/Emergency Repairs

Water Rights Review
(Grant lncome from Yuba Water Agency) for Water
Rights Review

Flood Damage Repair (Forsythe Rd)

Median Household lncome Study

Total Special Projects/Emergency Repairs to date

Water Treatment Plant lmprovements/Repairs

FT Ditch

Halversterm Flume

Shortcrete-Gun ite-Cribbing

Total FT Ditch

Office Maintenance/Shop

Radio Read Meters

Tanks

Flow Meters

Water Losses

lrrigation Ditch

Shotcrete

Total lrrigation Ditch

S513,879.87 July-November2023

5201,62L.26 July-November 2023

July-November 2023

July-November 2023

5827,454.60 J u ly-November 2023

$6,244.70

-592,748.47

ss,43s.4s

s4,000.00

July-November 2023

July-November 2023

July-November 2023

July-November 2023

July-November 2023

July-November 2023

s98,988.12

s5,760.00

-$77,068.32

571s,s01.13

s19,s00.00

s16,s78.s0

$29,120.00

s720,000,00

s20,000.00

ss0,000.00

s200,000.00

53s0,000.00

ss00,000.00

ss0,000.00

s2s0,000.00

s400,000.00

s16,s78.s0

$100,000.00

s827,4s4.60 ss00,000.00

TOTAT St,6o6ltq,o3 53,185,698.50



11:21 AM
't2112t23

North Yuba Water District
Statement of Cash Flows

November 2023

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net lncome

Adjustments to reconcile Net lncome

to net cash provided by operations:

A/R:NR Domestic Water

I/R:Ir/R lrrigation

1300.00 . lnventory-0O1

1400.03 . Prepaid Worker's Comp lnsurance

2000.00 . Accounts Payable

Payroll Liabilities

2150.30 ' PR Tax-State Unemploynent Tax

2150.35 . PR Tax -Union Dues

2150.50 . PR -Aftac tns

2250.1 0 . Deposits-Customers

Net cash provided by Operating Activities

Expenses/lncome from Reserves/Savings

Additional Legal

lrrigation Ditch Shotcrete

FT Ditch: Shotcrete

Halversterm Flume

Net Expenses/lncome from Reserves/Savings

Net cash increase for period

Cash at beginning of period

Cash at end of period

Nov 23

--r
12,600.06

6,486.41

2,571.56

-885.55

2,834.07

428,592.03

1.50

3'1 .50

198.00

131 .92

97.00

452,658.50

-12,545.50

-827,454.60

-200,563.73

-472,727.93

-

-1,513,291.76

-

-1,060,633.26

6,258,521.89

-

_I,19?,88&99.

Page 1 of 1



River

North Yuba Water District

Cash ln Accounts prior Month Comparison

November 2023 compared to October 2023
LolsLl

Amount
S140,739.13

Savi Mon Market Account (River Valley
Account

& Register Cash

Tri Counties Bank (6 Month CD-matures03/0t/24-4.L
YC Treas Fund #637 (Gen Dist)

YC Treas Fund #641 (lD #1

YC Treas Fund #642 (lD #

YC Treas Fund #639 (Fac Fee Domestic)
YC Treas Fund #640 (Savi

YC Treas Fund #644 (

YC Treas Fund #646

YC Treas Fund #647 (Annex lrr)
YC Treas Fund #648 (Annex Dom)
YC Treas Fund #649 (Off Equip Res)

YC Treas Fund #650

YC Treas Fund #393 (Trmt Plnt)

Total Cash on Hand

Reserve Accounts

Reserve Money Market (River Valley Bank)

Market Account (River Valley Bank)

Total in Reserve

Tota! in All Accounts not including FT Tank and
YC Water Sale Account

FT Tank Market Account River Valley Bank)

YC Water sale Account (River Bank

Total in AllAccounts 5s,rsz,aer.sz I gs,zsa,es+.sa 
I

(s1,060,533.26)

Amount

393.01

t79.38

s830.00
ss00,000.00
s683,112.ss
s483,s18.08
s213,810.94

s7,601.09

s81.6,674.86

53,094.97

sl].,754.47

s11.s8

s9o.s6
ss,5s3.34

s897,744.94
2,825.1,8

s98,142.1s
s530,161.08

SG28,303.23

5q,6q7Fgt.tt

t1L,207.

s439,316

,995.63)
r,096,47L.27],

s0.00
So.oo

So.oo

so.oo

so.oo
s0.00
s0.00

so.oo
so.oo

s0.00

$0.00

so.oo

346,426.92l-

s161.19
S870.76

(s1,345,394,87

S 182.6s

78.96

s0.00

48

s683,112.ss

s213,810.94

s7,601.09

s816,674.86

Ss,36s,ast.3o

51"t1.,024.7

1"54,737.

Bank



Finance Report for December 21. 2023 Board Meeting:

As of November 30, 2023 tota! cash in all accounts including reserves

was 55,197,86L.57 .

Total income for the fiscal year to date (July L't, zo23 to November 30,

20231 was $2,501,531_.67. Total expenses were Sg+a,005.11

Net revenue over expenses was SL,656,926.56

Expenses out of Reserves/Savings tota! S1,605,7L4.03 for this fiscal
year.



NORI'IT YTJT]A

\Az{TER-S- DISTzuCT

Memorandum
Date: December 18th, 2023

To: Leona Harris

From: Operations

Subject: Monthly work production/ Schedule of Maintenance review

The following is an overview of the work performed this month by operations staff.

Office Updote:

L. PG&E installed a new street light for the district parking lot on December 7th.

Transmission:

1. Forbestown ditch is now in its winter cycle, receiving water every 10 days for the treatment
plant. The ditch is being patrolled; trash racks cleaned, fallen trees removed, leaks plugged as

they are found, along with daily inspections for new losses. Problem spots are being documented
for off season repairs.



Distribution:

1. Domestic meter reads for Brownsville and Rackerby were completed on time.
2. Therewere5servicelineleaksforthelastmonth. Jobi727.Job#728.Job#730.Job#731.Job#

731.

3. There was L main line leak for the last month. Job # 730.

4. All blow offs were inspected, no problems were found.

5. All air releases were inspected, no problems were found.

6, All dead-end main were flushed,

7. The old challenge redwood tank has been dismantled for replacement. The new foundation is

currently in the process of being prepared for installation.

Woter Treatment Plont:

t. With the new upgrades mentioned in previous reports, the treatment plant is functioning
normal at this time with no issues.

Bockflow:

1, All backflows are current, there was 1 backflow tests required within the last 4 weeks.

Regulators:

L. All CDPH (Cal. Dept. of Public Health) and NPDES (Nat. Pollution Discharge Elimination

System) tests and samples were taken and performed on time. These include 3
bacteriological distribution samples for the CDPH, which came back as non-detect. New

radio data loggers for water reads/accounting are currently being installed at Costa creek,

Oroleve creek, and Dry creek turnouts.



DOH Condl:

1. Staff is currently preparing the ditch for off season repairs. Shotcrete was started the
second week of November. Approximately 2 miles is being prepped for shotcrete. Weather
permitting it will all be completed this fall. As of today L2175/2O23, 6600 feet of shotcrete
has been completed on 01. 5200 Feet from New York House Rd downstream and 1400 feet
from New York House Rd upstream.

Sched u I e of Mai nteno n ce :

1. The SOM (schedule of maintenance) for the treatment plant, regulators (local, state and

federal) and UFC were completed for the previous month, All regulatory (local, state and

federal) reports for the current month were completed or are in process.

Solety Meetings:

1. Safety meetings are held weekly, all field employees are required to attend. The following is

a list of completed safety meetings in the last 4 weeks.

2. #L Stress

3. #2811. safety.

4. #3 Workplace violence.

5. #4 Working around heavy equipment.



] .: u,

Z

I

t\

'\



I:I
.J ', , ., ,,- 1' l, , r! iil
'"'' 

""ii'.'i'1'1""1 
' '' t

'\,.t.l ,1t :.1 1,' ,!, ).
t,L,l I

't

':

:r

I

t,',

f

*



,. ;li r :,:, \,,j, ,,1,,, " ,'lt 1{i;'"..',."'",n- ''.,, 1, . t ' :l ,,',:',.]....^....,,...,,.i.,;,,,.'.,,.;

.,.t:i ,. .: - :.' - :. . ..._ ",::i.,.. :.. i,rr: .":- i, . l. I , '. ..,, ,.r. . .r',
:

' .1

.. .i.

''.1 .: .

'..,;,, r,.. i., -J i';,'.: " .,.,.:'.t..,1
, . :... ,.; i, ., ., , ,,., ,t:

::,. .;,

.l

: 'i .

i:t

I

i

il



o,l

.'t)
.+:"

h#

t'

ffi
, ,ri

7

I

,.1

.t r

$



t)1

1 ' .',, ,,t).t',rti,i,l,;,,',"),',, ;' ,. ,' . 
-. 

1,,.'.; i.',..; ,

1'
i

L

, :, llii ,'l ,' 
l'

i,1r1r,'i,.i,1,.,7 
:,'i!t,' .: n

',"" ':., 11 , ti,ii ' t,r, ( i' '

a

I

I

n
i)

I ,1,



,ffi
N; 

P#,
ET::eM

T
,r

l'iu'

t
,t

tu

I T!
''1.'',t',i

r

I

1

ll
I

I



Oin^LL,.T-.[yA

,.,;;
,:i{i'r\'''
tTi r,) i

litiir{,1

:i$ti:,.

a

7

ru
F*rmn



t'-

EE

h-ffi

l
Il6

iI{, ',,,"'ffi|,,,r,iii flf;il lirT;,lli,'frrrr#W-=''!' WI', .,,' ;irii {;i,[!ffii,
| 
=#lt|;*l 

* i;::ii;:;;, i,,,,i;,| !,r'l' 
-'l' 

t, 
,,:'il:lrfgitii i

u,,.J,, "* *it#ffiFili*iil'' ,. :t,,',1;';i,,tl)ill.ij.it:li:, 
1;...,r;r.;. ;.;::'1,,'

\,',,,,;i:,,,, 
:;iir,,ldif;t1Yi[ffi,.

'tiruffi:' ,iffiiffi

1r.1 
1".,;li,r:r+ttIffi

-' 
o**ffi

i.N#t'-***u*ffi

-r,'u,,,J :;,, 
I i,'$ilitfft#

* L 
,u ' 

:it1'i'iil'i' ''i''''i'' +;"ilffii"lli-

i,,,'.';";';'t''iit'il$itiffiJ, :, :,,,' .;tt*ii$gi*ffi

' .,r, i ':1 
,. , I ,l 

: 
; ,;,,,. 

,$. ;..;,1f ,iiu,,,
;t), l. 

.. .' ,i]il'"),,r,.:i i'"' ,,),tu,,.i,"ii,1,ir;',., l,
,t ii, ;fi.,' .;'ffi!;{r';,rit:i':' 

::,..:-..'... t:iiij"
dj



tLt \ + g*o.-{ €\*n".o*

,,\i,i:.

i
a.

.4t:,,.

.l:..:

i,"-
l: 

,

:/
,1

i .),,

t

fr

':./ I
/l

:1. )

T



Print Form

Notice of Exemption Appendix E

To: Office of Planning and Research
P.O. Box 3044, Room 113
Sacramento, CA 9581 2-3044

County Clerk

North Yuba Water District

County of :

915 8th Str

Yuba County
915 8th Street

Marysville,CA. 95901 t)Ec 0 5 2023

DONNA HILLEGASS, Clerk
proiect 1;x". North Yuba Water District Canal Stabilization And Water Loss Mitigation sy__BBIDG!-iiE';(/i'[ii

Project Applicant: North Yuba Water District

Project Location - Specific:
This project is located in rural Yuba county. Map attached. lntermittent lengths along red line 0l and yellow
lineForbestown.Vicinitiesof 39*32'57"N-121*il'21',w &39*26'19"N-12,l*15,53'w&39*24,01',N-121*12,51W.

Project Location - city: woodleaf-Brownsville-DE project Location - county: Yuba

Description of Nature, Purpose and Beneficiaries of project:
See attached

Name of Public Agency Approving Project: North Yuba Water District

Name of Person or Agency Carrying out Project: North Yuba Water District

Exempt Status: (check one):

tr Ministerial (Sec, 21080(b)(1); 15268);
D Declared Emergency (Sec. 2i080(bX3); 1S269(a));

D Emergency Project (Sec. 21080(b)(a); 1S269(bXc));
tr Categorical Exemption. State type and section number: see attached

n Statutory Exemptions. State code number:

Reasons why project is exempt:
See attached

Brownsville, cA. e5e1e ENf)ORSED FILED
(Address) YUBACOUNTYCURK/RECORD,ER

From: (Public Agency):
PO Box 299

Lead Aoencv
Coniu"iF"ii"", Leona Harris

Area Code/Telephone/Extension: 530-375-2567

lf Iiled by applicant:
1. Attach certified document of exemption finding.
2. Has a Notice of Exemption been filed by the public agency approving the project?. tr Yes tr No

signutur"' o^t", /l/sar,/A= titt", t-re'., r",(, ,*lrrrrg,,r_
tr Signed by Lead Agency D Signed by Appticant

Authority cited: Sections 2'1083 and 21 1 10, Public Resources Code. Date Received for filing at OpR:
Reference: Seclions 21108,21 152, and 21152.1, Public Resources Code.

Talv F.$,,;o,oo3ol



North Yuba water District canal stabilization And water loss Mitigation

Description of Nature, Purpose and Beneficiaries of project:
North Yuba is lining approximately 9500 linear feet of its irrigation canals and main transmission ditch
with shotcrete to reduce water loss. This loss reduction effort has been ordered by the State Water
Board. The areas to be lined are earthen and have been identified as susceptible to substantial water
loss. ln some areas, NYWD is installing shotcrete to end the annual replacement of plastic liners, reducing
the use of plastics in and near water courses. Other stretches of the newly installed shotcrete will connect
to ditches that have already been lined with shotcrete in earlier activities.

_ Categorica! Exemption. State type and section number:
NYWD has determined that this activity is not a project as that term is defined in the California
Environmental Quality Act. (CEQA Guideline 15378.) But, should this activity be determined to be a
project as defined by the Act, NYWD has determined that it is subject to the following exemptions under
CEQA Guidelines 1s061(b)(2) :

r Class 1 exemption as it is a repair of an existing facility used for the public utility
senrice of delivering water. (CEQA Guidelines 15301(b).)

r Class 1 exemption as it is a minor repairs and alterations to an existing structure
[the ditch] that is appurtenant to a dam [these ditches car:ry surface water only],
under the supenrision of the Department of Water Resources, which has orderll' the activity. (CEQA Guidelines 15001(m).)

r Class 2 exemption as it is the reconstruction of an existing utility system and/or
facility involving negligible or no expansion of capacity; the shotciete is simply
lining the pre-existing ditches. (CEeA Guidelines 15302(c).)

r Class 4 exemption as tJ:e activity is a minor trenching and Uackffting of t1le
ditches where the surface is restored through the use of shotcrete. (CEqA
Guidelines 1530a(fl.)



North Yuba Water District Canal Stabilization And Water Loss Mitigation Legend

oS Forbestown Ditch

o1. Ot Canat

k: -Ponclerosa 
Reservorr



State of California - Department of Fish and Wildlife

2023 ENVIRONMENTAL DOCUMENT FILING FEE
CASH RECEIPT
DFW 753.5a (REV. 01/01/23) Previously DFG 753,5a

SEE INSTRUCTIONS ON REVERSE. TYPE OR PRINTCLEARLY.
LEADAGENCY

NORTH YUBA WATER DISTRICT

COUNTY/STATE AGENCY OF FILING

YUBA

PROJECTTITLE

NORTH YUBAWATER DISTRICT CANAL STABILIZATION AND WATER LOSS MITIGATION

PROJECTAPPLICANT MME

NORTH YUBA WATER DISTRICT

PROJECT APPLICANT ADDRESS

PO BOX 299

I tocat Public Agsncy n School Distrid ! Otfrer Special District I state Agency f] Private Entity

RECEIPT NUMBER:

58-12052023- 39

STATE CLEARINGHOUSE NUMBER (lf applicable)

1210512023

NUMBER

NUMBER

(530) 375-2567

CODE

95919

CITY STATE

BROWNSVILLE CA

PROJECT APPLICAI,IT (Check appropriate box)

CHECK APPLICABLE FEES:

E Environmental lmpact Report (ElR)

E MitigatediNegative Declaration (MNDXND)

E Certifted Regulatory Program (CRP) document - payment due directly to CDFW

E Exempt from fee

I Notice of Exemption (attach)

E cOfW No Effect Determination (attach)

E Fee previously paid (attach preMously issued cash receipt copy)

E Water Right Application or Petition Fee (State Water Resources Conlrol Board only/

$ County documentary handling fee

E otner 0,00

PAYMENTMETHOD:

E castr E Credit E cnecr I other

$3,839.25

$2,764.00

$1,305.2s

$E50.00 $

$

$

TOTAL RECEIVED $

$

$

$

$50.00

$50.00

OF FILING PRINTED NAME AND TITLE

ORIGIML. PROJECT APPLICANT COPY. CDFWASB COPY - LEAD AGENCY COPY - COUNTY CLERK DFW 753.5a (Rov. 0'l 101 12025)

4ln*



State of Califomia - Department of Fish and WiHlife

2023 ENVIRONMENTAL DOCUMENT FILING FEE
CASH REGEIPT
DFW 753.5a (REV. 01/01/23) Previously DFG 753.5a

RECEIPT NUMBER:

58-12052023- 39

SEE INSTRUCTIONS ON REVERSE. TYPE OR PRINTCLEARLY.
LEADAGENCY

NORTH YUBA WATER DISTRICT

COUNTY/STATE AGENCY OF FILING

YUBA

PROJECTTITLE

NORTH YUBA WATER DISTRICT CANAL STABILIZATION AND WATER LOSS MITIGATION

PROJECTAPPLICANT MME

NORTH YUBA WATER DISTRICT

PROJECT APPLICANT ADDRESS

PO BOX 299

ffi LocatPubllcAgency ! SchoolDistrid fl oner Speclal Dlstrict ! state Ag€ncy I Rrivate entity

ATE CLEARINGHOUSE NUMBER (lt appllcable)

1210512023

NUMBER

2023FG-00039

NUMBER

(530) 375-2567

CODE

9591 9

PROJECT APPLICA'TIT (Chock approfiate box)

CHECK APPLICABLE FEES:

E Enuronmentallmpact Report (ElR)

E Mltigated/Negative Doclaratlon (MND)(ND)

E Certlfied Regulatory Program (CRP) document - payment due dheclly to CDFM/

A€mpt from fee

E t'lottee of Ercmptlon (attach)

E cofw uo Etreot Determination (attach)

F€e previously pald (attech prevlously lssued cash recelpt copy)

E Water Righl Application or Petitlon F€€ (State Weter Resources Control Board only)

S County docum€ntary handllng f6e

E otrer 0.00
PA\r'MENT METHOD:

E Cash E creOit E cne* E other

$3,83S.25

$2,764.00

$1,305.25

$8s0.00 $

$

$

TOTAL RECEIVED $

$

$

$

a

tr

$50.00

$50.00

OF FILING PRINTED NAME AND TITLE

ORIGINAL. PROJECT APPLICANT COPY. COFWASB COPY. LEAD AGENCY COPY. COUNW CLERK DFW 753.5a (Rsu 01/01/2023)

CIW STATE

BROWNSVILLE CA

4t*o



rJ', .l o
u_).-r l, . ulrj': C, @ O.JI-<O

rJl ttt C
'a
q
a
E
rl
d
J
ofr}{

4tr!3O
..-. "4 

q{
,dmi-:*+i51>i-,4 A

\-qL
ta in -- J1

d

rr il=b I Ej3 E" ,; A
Ortri-,-'iEi Fa]dil

i
I

i
I
I

I
I
!
I

i

I

i
I

i

Itr

*op
o,.f.c! il >.o

f h. tl
'l
U

arr .- [(n!t.H
-- ,l Jr !-,J',?
arqEi :-rUxa
OsLi;-r
[qHn ,:f

r-i
&i
E]
f+

i I:"t,o:,I'f-C-.d.1D =- #* !*
tl r:l .-. ,n ff

5" ; I 'j o, .r, r--d

b' 7, iD :1 ,r-a -ErlT''.{rr+ltr
3 - Y -'-' l ';-: z
o ll ,.r-r -0 ,iI o i- r E
dil;d[_:. I gtf :mE
.O Dr* I - - X :.q +.ri l-r *J''l n1 'J I ..{ ,:-r u, Lt O- s ir Hfr.: fi-,iI ? -.,,iLsi-*: 5 ,:;, :j cY) 0 ':; ,,, 'j f H; :E ; Ei: ;f;

=:Aoolr d €tro o:4
{l i.l i ihXO{i-rt

[a(\le*3
efiH
to*:i
u):!
.o3I
TiT{oh,ri()#\IeiJj
r-f t=



YOUR BEST PROTECTION

ACWA JPIA

P.O. Box 619082
Roseville, CA

95661€082

phone
916.786.s742
800.231.5742

www.aewqipia.corn

Core Volues
. People
. Seryice

. lntegrity
. lnnovation

11t2712423

North Yuba Water District (Y003)
P.O. Box 299
Brownsville, CA 9591 9-0299

General Manager:

Each year at Fall Conference, the JPIA recognizes members that
have a Loss Ratio of 20o/o or less in either of the Liability, Property
or Workers' Compensation programs (loss ratio = total losses /
total premiums).

The members with this distinction receive the "President's
Special Recognition Award" certificate for each Program that
they qualify in.

The JPIA is extremely pleased to present North Yuba Water Distri
(Y003) with this special recognition and commends the District on
the hard work in reducing claims.

Congratulations to you, your staff, Board, and District. Keep up thr

good work!

The JPIA wishes you the best in 2024.

Sincerely,

*id -rft-fi*.fl(

Melody McDonald
President

Enclosure: President's Special Recognition Award(s)



N
orl

$i\
AJa
tr
lJI

t

*
d
$ql
tr6
a
.g
E
s
a
-ql

N
Jq*

s
q\

\.J

R"

:
a

.i
U

N ,..'

EN$A\IAX- a\ il

{$sIr.E\-\'

Hs$cJ \ q,)

TSS(i.8 Rh.Ur!V A ar

Ess
:H&\
U E!
ENS
$ $l
OEl-

$ $Ehq s€stsst'S
$S N

.F

.st
N

*.

.H
E
.s
a
\
Utr

.Q$
\l-

Na
\

\r\)
Pr

s
\.s
e

o
b

s

s

$s$
i N.*

EN$
$Hg\Ea'

H.q

h{
N
Nl+p

\

e
.S
.H
s
$
U
qJq

.E
qJt

-u)t
es

a:
(rj

$J

{



o
0()



NORTH YT]BA

\AATER.s/' 
DISTRICT

December 12,2023

VIA EMAII, DI]I,IVERY
(bconnelly@buttecounty.net; slucas@buttecounty,net; scott@scottbrowne.corn)

Butte County Local Agency Formatior.r Cornrnission
c/o Butte County LAFCo, Chainnan
1453 Downer Street, Suite C
Oroville, CA 95965

RE: Response to Proposal to Dissolve the North Yuba Water District IRevisedl

Dear Comrtrissioners:

I arn the General Manager fbr the North Yuba Water District. Tod tlickrnan has urged you
to dissolve North Yuba, give all of North Yuba's assets to the South Feather Water and
Power Agency, so that South Feather can then use these assets to provide Mr. Hickrnan
with tnore water. Anticipating that the North Yuba Board of Directors will oppose Mr.
Hicktnan's proposals, I write to request that yoLr not bring this rnatter back as an agendized
item.

BACKGROUND:

As you likely know, Mr. Ilickrnan is not a Yuba County resident and is not a North Yuba
water custotner. Ile is a Butte County resident and Bangor property owner - which would
benefit fiorn any increased water deliveries Mr. Hickrnan seeks.

During the last year, three or l'our people lobbied North Yuba and South Feather to
voluntarily mergc. Three of thern signed Mr. Hickrnan's letter attached to your December
7tr'tneeting agenda. For the purpose of this letter, I will refer to the three signators as "co-
authors,"

The co-authors efforts to persuade South [reather and North Yuba to txerge failed, and
when it did, the co-authors began lobbying other public agencies to take part in a scheme
that would result in North Yuba dissolving and South Feather absorbing North Yuba's
custolners and assets.

Befbre Mr. llickrnan pitched to you his scherne to obtain more water for Bangor by taking
it frorn North Yuba, Mr. Flickrnan repeatedly lobbied the State Water Resource Control
Board to take actions that would end North Yuba's existence - once again to South

f'ounclccl in lt)52

PIIONE (51-t0) 675-2567 . FAX (530) 675-04(i2 . email(Dnywd.or3 . www.rtywd.or'.g

Aclurirristrativet)fl'ice:8ti9 ll:tlbrteRoacl,tlrowrrsville,CAgs.glt) lN4ailingAcldress:t'.O.tlox299,tlrownsvilte,CA959 I9



Butte County LAFCo
RE: Response to Letter Advocating fbr Dissolution of the North Yuba Water District
Decenrber 12,2023
Page2

Feather's benefit. He based his pitch to the State Water Board on the same argurnents he is
using to pitch his proposals to you. However, like you, the State Water Board does not have
the.iurisdictiott to do what Mr. Hickrnan requests, and is not expected to lnake any ef'fort to
do as Mr. Ilicklnan urges.

NO JURISDICTION:

As you recognized at the end of Mr, Hickrnan's presentation, North Yuba is not within your
.iurisdiction. North Yuba is looated within Yuba County. You cannot dissolve North Yuba
without YubaLAFCo's approval and participation.

Despite your suggestion that Mr, Hickrnan bring his proposal to YubaLAFCo, Mr.
Hickman has not done so. If and when he does, I am confident that YubaLAFCo will not be
interested in dissolving North Yuba so that a Butte County resident can get rnore water. I
aln also confident that by Rath Moseley, Sor:th Feather's General Manager, r.vill inforrn
your staff that South Feather is not interested in absorbing any of North Yuba's customers
or assets.

MR. HICKMAN'S MISREPRESENTATIONS:

The lack of.iurisdiction is enough to end the cluestion of whether or not you can deliver
water to Bangor by taking it fiorn North Yuba. However, we are infonned that at least one
of ButteLAFCo's cotnrnissioners is Mr. Hickrnan'spersonal fiiend. As lar as I can tell fiorn
my revier.v of your agenda and rninutes archive, no correspondence agenda item has ever
becotne a presentation/discussion itern as it did on Decernber 7tl', The public did not
receive any notice that Mr, []ickrnan would be personally appearing to disparage North
Yuba. I arn not accusing you of any wrongdoing or Brorvn Act violation, but all of this
supports the appearance of possible bias in favor of Mr. I{ickrnan, and that his proposals -
no matter how incorrect or unworkable - could get your attention and assistance.

During and after Mr. Hickrnan's presentation on Decernb er 7 ,2023, you instructed your
staff to look into his proposals. Consequently, it is appropriate to assist your staff by
responding to Mr. Hickman's accusations against North Yuba.

Responding to all of Mr. Hickman's untrue staternents would result in a very, very long
letter, so I rvill point out sorne of his rnore irnportant untrue statements and argurnents.

Accusations of Mismanagem ent:

8691 LaPorteRd./P.O.Box299lBrownsville,CA959l9/Phone: 5306752567 FAX.53O6150462



Butte CoLrnty LAFCo
RE: Response to Letter Advocating for Dissolution of the North Yuba Water District
Decenrber 12,2023
Page 3

The current board inherited a severely rnisrnanaged water district with crurnbling Mr.
Hickrnan argues that, in the past, North Yuba was severely rnisrnanaged, The current
Board does not deny that, in the past, prior boards may have mismanaged the District.
infrastructure suffering fiorn decades of neglect. But Mr. Hickrnan irnplies that those
practices continue with the current board. They do not. Mr. Hickrnan unfairly tries to
blarne the current lloard for the sins of past boards.

When the current North Yr.rba directors were seated nearly one year ago, they rolled up tlieir
sleeves and set to work fixing i.vhat is broken in North Yuba, starting with the District's
water conveyance infiastrr.rcture. The current board enacted rnassive repairs that not only
allowed the first irrigation water delivery season in years, but is producing a water surplus.
Steps were taken to it.uprove drinking water quality, and to repair and replace leaking and
darnaged watertanks used to store treated dornestic water. We are proud of passing
unannounced water quality testing conducted by the State Water Board.

And we are not even closer to being done. The current board intends on continuing repairs
and irnprovements, and expanding services by adding irrigation and dornestic water
customers. The current board intends on installing, if possible, fire suppression
infiastructure such as pressurized hydrants and flre break green belts. We are working with
rvater law experts, and are working closely with the Water Resource Control Board to
achieve these goals.

No Water to Sell:

Mr, Hickrnan argues that North Yuba doesn't have water. He is very wrong.

Prior to the last election, there was rvide-spread confirsion over the state of the District's
watersupply. Everyone with access to some of the inforrnation and an understanding of
sotne of the applicable law had a different opinion abor-rt the future of the District's water
supply and the healtli of our water perrnits. But no one had the benefit of all of the facts and
a clear knowledge of all of the law and regulations involved.

One of the very first things the new North Yuba Board did was to hire water expert G.M.
I'ully to advise the Board on the heaith of the District's water supply. We instructed Mr.
Tully to do a "deep dive" into the cornplex factual, legal and historical questions
surrounding the health of North Yuba's water supply, to leave no stone unturned. We
wanted definitive answers.

8691 LaPorte Rd / P.O. Box 299 / Brownsville, CA 95919 / Phone: 530 675 2567 FAX:530 675 0462



Butte County LAFCo
RFl: Response to l,etter Advocating for Dissolution of'the North Yuba Water District
Decenrber 12,2023

Page 4

Mr, Tully's report is attached to this letter. As a result of Mr. Tully's work, the new Board -
and the public - have a clearer, accurate understanding of the District's water supply issues
than at any other tirne in the past.

As a cottsequence ol Mr. Tully's good u,ork, North Yuba knows that, although there are
challenges ahead, we can be confident that the District will have enough water to continue
providing high quality irrigation and dornestic water to our custorners now and in the future
- and possibly add irrigation and domestic water custorners.

Mr. Hickrnan told you "[North Yubal residents [arel screarning for water and there is never
any water." This also is not true. As I discussed above in the "rnisrnanagelnent" section of
this letter, due to the operational reforrns and inlrastruoture repairs the current board
ordered, irrigation water custorners enjoyed the first irrigation water delivery season in
Inany years, and there have been irnprovernents to both the quantity and quality of dornestic
drinking water. Not onc North Yuba water custorner is suffcring frorn lack of water.

Mr. Hickrnan claitns that two of North Yuba's water pennits expired in 2004. They
haven't, and won't for tnany years. In the rneantirne, the current North Yuba adrninistration
is working closely and collaboratively with the State Water Resource Control Board to
resolve the State's concerns about the errors cornrnitted by past boards and their
adlninistrations. As a result of these efforts, and cornbined u,ith waterprovided through
water licenses which do not need to be extended, North Yuba is confident it will rneet the
u'ater Ireeds for current custorrers, and watcr saved due to recent and futurc rcpairs will
allow North Yuba to expand to include new water custorners - including residents who's
private wells are running dry.

Mr. Hickrnan states "According to SWRCB, when a water district's permits are expired, it
is forbidden to scll any watcr to new customers," llanyone at the Statc Board told this to
Mr. I{ickrnan, then Mr. Ilickrnan was tnisirr{'onned. E,ven if it is sornehow true, only one of
the two pennits the State Board is considering rnight not be extended, and NYWI) is
prepared to use the tirne belbre expiration, years frorn now, to persuade the State Board to
change its Inind. And even ilthc State Board declines to cxtcnd onc watcr pcnnit, North
Yuba is confident that water saved due to repaired and replaced infiastructure will allow
expansion of existing services.

Mr. I Iickrnan says that North Yuba does not have water storage facilities. But we do.
North Yuba stores water in a pond that holds 9,123,828 gallons of water. We store water in
the Little Grass Valley Reservoir, the Sly Creek Reservoir, and [.ost Creek Reservoir.
North Yuba built these reservoirs and jointly owns thern with South Feather. We store l.l
rnillion gallons of treated domestic water in five storage tanks.

8691 LaPorte Rd. / P.O. 8ox 299 lBrownsville, CA 95919 / Phone: 530 675 2567 FAx:530 675 0/,62



Butte County LAFCo
RE: Response to Letter Advocating fbr Dissolutiorr of the North Yuba Water District
Dcccmber 12,2023
Page 5

Underserved Com mu nity:

Mr. Hickrnan argues that North Yuba underserves the North Yuba cornrnunity. His
argutnent is historically and factually misleading. Alter North Yuba's founding, it
needed the financial ability to provide water to prospective custorners. To satisfy this goal,
North Yuba becalne partners with South Feather to build power generation infi'astructure.

For 50 years, the agreernent between North Yuba and South Feather required North Yuba to
devote water to the generation of electricity, allorving North Yuba to use very little water
for irrigation and dotnestic uses. When, in 2010, the power infrastructure was paid
off, North Yuba startcd planning a servicc cxpansior.r, but ncvcr carried out that
plan.

North Yuba's current directors carnpaigned and won o1.r the prolrise to expand services,
and the new Board is lonlulating a plan to doing just that. Due to water savings fiont
infiastructure repairs, we will hopehrlly have water to tneet current dernand and expand
water service to nerv agricultural, dornestic, and rnunicipal water custorners.

North Yuba vs South Feather:

Mr. [iickrnan paints an ugly picture of a bad relationship between North Yuba in Yuba
County and South Feather in Butte County. 'fhe truth is that the working relationship
between North Yuba and South Feather have never been better. Both Districts now enjoy a
mutually benefjcial partncrship that is based on a.ioint power generating agrecrnent that
provides irrrportant incorne to both districts.

Mr. [{ickrnan says that North Yuba and South Feather have engaged in "endless lawsuits
for years." Hc did not tcll you tl-rat thc ncu, Board rctained new gcncral lcgal counsel, who
settled all existing lawsuits and rnanaged all pending or anticipated lawsuits so as to avoid
conflict and cost. All that rernains is two lawsuits - one frled by South Feather and one filed
by North Yuba, but settlernent is the goal for both sides.

South Feather's Financial Hardships:

Mr. Hickrnan argues that South Feather is well-run, efficient, but failing to deliver rnillions
of acre feet of water to Butte County custonrers. 'fhe reason? Mr. Hickrnan blarnes North
Yuba for taking South Feather's water and rnoney, and he argues that everything will be
right as rain if North Yuba ceases to exist, and South Feather can keep all of the ntoney it is
paying to North Yuba.

8591 LaPorte Rd. / P,O. Box 299,/ Brownsville, CA 95919 ,/ Phone: 530 675 2567 FAX:530 675 0462



Butte County LAFCo
RB: Response to Letter Advocating lbr Dissolution of the North Yuba Water District
Decernber 12,2023
Page 6

I'm General Manager of a water district. I live and breathe this stuff. But even I am not
sure where to begin to unravel this cornpilation of disinfbnnation and statement of facts that
are.just plain wrong. But I will try.

First, Mr. Hickrnan argues that all of North Yuba's water colnes frorn the South Feather
watershed. It doesn't. Both districts export water frorn the Yuba River Watershed via a
tunnel by Slate Creek.

Mr. Hickman actually said to you that the water North Yuba receives via South Feather is
"our water." No it isn't. North Yuba owns the water South Feather conveys to North Yuba.
None of the water North Yuba receives via South Feather is a gift. It isn't stolen. North
Yuba owns it, and South Feather is obligated to allow it to pass through the Reservoirs and
tunnels to the Woodleaf Penstock where it is reieased through the Valve called SF-14 -
which is located in Butte County - and then into the Upper Forbestown Ditch, which is
locate in Yuba County. If North Yuba dissolves, South Feather will not necessarily keep
any of the water it is currently obligated to deliver to North Yuba.

Mr. Hickrnan describes the water that comes to North Yuba via South Feather as part of the
"South Feather watershed." There is no such watershed. That is a term that only South
Feather uses to describe the water it cotrtrols.

Nevertheless, Mr. Hickrnan argues that water that passes through South Feather should stay
in the "South Feather watershed." But that's not how Califbrnia's water systern works.
Fanners, cities and water districts in Southern Caiifornia receive water that originates in
Northern Califbrnia. Water that originates in the South Feather watershed - if there is such
a thing - ends up in many places, not just North Yuba. If you buy into Mr. Hickrnan's
argument, all California watersheds can and should stop exporting any of their water, and
that is contrary to both existing law and historical practice.

Mr. Hickrnan's answer is rnoney: according to hirn, what South Feather lacks isn't water, it
is rnoney - the rnoney it is paying to North Yuba.

What Mr. Ilicklnan doesn't tell you is that South Feather and North Yuba are equal partners
in a tnutually beneficial.joint project, sharing income fiom selling electricity generated
using North Yuba's water. Mr. Hickrnan wants you to believe that South Feather is losing
millions of dollars on the joint pro.iect- rnoney South Feather could spend to build a
pipeline to Bangor, He is wrong.
IIere is how it really works: the two agencies financed and bLrilt hydroelectric plants that
South Feather operates, Before any profits are split, all of, South Feather's expenses
operating the power plants is reirnbursed fi'orn the gross pro.iect earnings. Then the two

8691 LaPorte Rd. / P.O. Box 299 / Brownsville, CA 95919 / Phone: 530 675 2567 FAX:530 675 0462



Butte County I-AIrCo
RE: Responsc to Lcttcr Advocating firr Dissolution of the North Yuba Water District
December 12,2023
Page 7

agenoies split what is leit. In other words, the power pro.iect takes no money frorn South
Feather's general fund, tnoney South lreather spencls to serve its water custorrrers.

What Mr. Hickman is actually proposing is that South Feather keep all of the net profits it
currently shares with North Yuba - and he wants ButteLAFCo to dissolve North Yuba to
make it happen. I-le wants yon to rob North Yuba of the benefit o1'power intrastructure that
North Yuba helped build so that South Feather can use those stolen funds to deliver more
water to Mr. Hickman.

You should decide not to be part of sucli a scherne.

Wrongful Collection of Taxes:

Mr. I-lickrnan asks you to dissolve North Yuba because of the wrongful "collection of
taxes" ftotr noncustourers. I lrave consultecl with legal counsel about this
argurnent, and I aln adviscd that taxing rcsidcnls witliin North Yuba's sphere of
influence is not unlawful, the practice is wide-spreacl, and it is not a valid reason
for dissolution.

What Mr. Hiokrnan doesn't tell you is why some North Yuba residents are not
reoeiving watel'. It can be due to rnatters of'elevation and geography (North Yuba's
water deliveries are powcrcd by gravity, r,vhich lneans that parccls at higher
elevations cannot receive water), or it can be clue to the personal choioe to rely on
private wells (although they clo not a North Yuba custou'rer, their right to tap into
the District's rvater supply enhances the value o1'their property).

Nor does Mr. Hickrnau in{brnr yoLl whetlrer or not South Feather also laxes
noncustotners, and whether or not Sor"rth Feather is willing or even able to provide
water to these parcels i1'South Ircather sorrlehor.v absorbs North Yuba's assets. All
you know frotn what Mr. llickrnan told you is that South Feather has decided not to
provide Bangor with rnore water, Mr'. Hickrnari thinks it is because South Feather
cannot afford to do it, aucl he wants to Llse North Yuba's income to pay fbr it.

As I've covered earlier in this letter, this issue is ii relic of past boards and
adrrrinistratiotrs. The current Nortli Yuba board ancl adntinistration are cornrnitted
to expauding service as rnuch as possible, and that includes evaluatirrg the
possibility of building purilp stations to help serve customers on elevated parcels
and build another treatnlerlt plants to serve rnore domestic customers. For those
whose oircumstances have changed because their private wells are running dry, the
District is including therrr in our cxpansion plans.

8691 LaPorte Rd. / P.O. Box 299 / Brownsville, CA 95919 / phone: 530 675 2567 FAX: 530 675 0462



Butte County LAFCo
RE: Response to Letter Advocating fbr Dissolutior, of the North Yuba Warer Distriot
Deceniber 12,2023
Page 8

Conflict of Interest:

During your last rneeting Ruth Duncan - a rnernber of the South Feather Board of
Directors - expressed her concern that it might be a conflict of interest for her to be
part of any decision that is designed to benefit the South Feather. In rny opinion,
Con-rmissioner Duncan is justiliably concerned about rvhat appears to be a conflict.

However, there was fast discussion that seemed to conclude that, if Cornrnissioner
Duncan "abstains frour voting" that she can avoid the apparent conflict. I've been
infonned that abstention is not enough, that Cornrnissioner Duncan's mere presence
during discussion and any vote could influence the decision, and, therefore, that the
best practice to avoid a conllict of interest is to leave the room whenever the
Cornrnission discusses and/or takes action conneoted to Mr. Ilickrnan's scherne.

CONCLUSION

The North Yuba Water District is not located u,ithin Butte County. Consequently, the Butte
County Local Agency Fortnation Conlnission does not have the jurisdiction to reduce
North Yuba's sphere of influence or dissolve North Yuba.

Even if this was not true, Mr. Hickrnan gives no indication that South Feather - the
expected beneficiary of his plans - u,ants to take on the duties of providing water to North
Yuba's existing and prospective customers.

If for sorne reason you believe the co-authors' requests have lnerit, then please rneet with
and talk to North Yuba's staff to learn the true facts. When you do, we are confident you
will conclude that the actions the co-authors ask you to perfbnn woulcl not be goocl for
anyone, except perhaps Mr. Ilickrnan, and even that beneflt is dependent on South l,-eather
using resources and money stolen from North Yuba to builci the pipeline Mr. I{ickrnan
wants South Feather to build.

The current North Yuba tsoard inherited a lness, but we are working hard to fix what is
broken.

My door is open. Please call orvisit if you have any questions.

Sincerely,

8691 LaPorte Rd. / P.O. Box 299 / Brownsville, CA 95919 / Phone: 530 675 2567 FAX:530 675 0462



Butte County I-AFCo
RE: Response to Letter Advocatir-rg for Dissolution of the North Yuba Water District
December 12,2023
Page 9

Sincerely,

d-,^il,>
Leona Harris
North Yuba Water District, General Manager
530-675-2567

8691 LaPorte Rd. / P.O. Box 299 / Brownsville, CA 95919 / Phone: 530 675 2567 FAX',530 675 0462



The Watcr Group
\\'rrrcr l-aiv arrtl,{dvocrrl.-1,

t Ptirltssi0n,rl ('\rrn\rr.rt ioll

7(ll t Inir,crsit)' ,,\r'c., Suirc l()5, S;rcrirurcrrtrr, (.,{ c)i8l j

To: North Yuba Water District, Board of Directors
Date: August 23,2023
From: Gwyn-Mohr Tully, J.D.
Subject: Water Rights Summary

Summary and Overview
North Yuba Water District (NYWD) has a storied history for its water assets since its founding
in 1952. NYWD's prirnary obligation is to manage its water assets for its constituents' benefit.
This memorandum describes NYWD's water asset portfolio and explains the key issues facing
NYWD's Board of Directors in managing these water assets.

NYWD possesses seven waterassets. Each asset has unique characteristics that govern how it
can be used by NYWD's customers, Table I summarizes NYWD's water assets. The table is
separated into two categories - ( I ) assets held solely by NYWD and (2) assets held jointly
between NYWD and South Feather Water and Power Agency (SFWPA). In general, NYWD's
assets are for consumptive uses while assets jointly held are for power production.

NYWD Rishts Prioritv Date Quantity Water Source Purpose of Use Area Served

License 12984 8112/7922
21,.4 cls14/t'1011.s)

and 6,060 aflyr
Dry Creek

lrriBation, Fire

P rotecti on
YCWD lmprovement District No. 1

so2270l 1 860 6.86 cfs (all year) Oroleve Creek
Domestic and

I rrigation
NYIVD ServiceArea

Permit 11516 9/2Olles1 23,70O af lyr Slate Creek
Domestic, Municipal,

lndustrial, lrrigation
YCWD Servi ce Area, Yu ba City/Lower Yu ba

Cou n ty

Permit 11518 72128/195O 23,70O af lyr
SF Feather River, Lost

Creek, Feather River

Domestic, Municipal,

lndustrial, lrrigation
YCWD ServiceArea, Yuba City/LowerYuba

County

NYWD SFWPA

Joint Rights Prioriw Date Quantity Water Source Purpose of Use Area Served

License 10939 4/7 /19so

300 cfs SFF; 77,300 aflyr

in LGV& SC;24,100 in

SC from LC; 100 cfs from
LC (max 350 cfs)

South Fork Feather

River and Lost Creek
Power

WoodleafP.P., Forbestown P.P., Kelly Ridge

P, P.

License 10940 9 l2o/7sso

300 cfs and 35,000 aflyr

in SC (max 600 cfs);

rediv at SC, LC,

Forbestown, PD

Slate Creek Power
Sly Creek P.P., Woodl eaf P, P., Forbestown

P.P., Kelly Rid8e P.P.

License 10941 12l28ltssj

100 cfs SFF and 200 LC;

73,300 and 40,000
storage; rediv at SC, LC,

Forbestown, PD

South Fork Feather

River and Lost Creek
Power Sly Creek P.P.

Table 1: NYWD Water Asset Summary



The Water Group
\\?fcr l-ou, rtrrri Arh,ocacl'

The water asset characteristics described in Table I are derived fi"om a number of NYWD
actions, state agency regulatory orders, and agreements between NYWD and SFWPA. These
iterns are further sutnmarized in this memorandum as they affect NYWD's water asset portfolio
and water management objectives.

Water Right Order 2004-0029 (Order)
On July 17,2004, the State Water Resources Control Board (State Board) issued an Order
related to NYWD's and SFWPA's water asset portfolios. ln particular, the Order affected water
right Perrnits I I 5 I 6 and I I 5 I 8 - two water rights that were jointly held by NYWD and SFWpA
atlhal time. The Order conditionally extended the Permits and required NYWD and SFWPA to
undertake a number of actions in order to release the conditional label. With these required
actions pending in the background, the Order reduced the total water supply available under both
Permits to 23,700 acre-feet per year and added Yuba City into the authorized place of use to
Permit I 1518.

The issuance of the conditional Permits extension motivated NYWD and SFWPA to take a
number of actions. These actions were encapsulated in a 2005 Agreement between NYWD and
SFWPA (Agreernent). The three fundamental actions in the Agreernent that affected NYWD
were:

I . NYWD obtained complete ownership over Pennits I I5l6 and I I 5l 8.

2. SFWPA quitclaimed the Upper Forbestown Ditch and its pre- 1 914 water rights
associated with it to NYWD.

3. NYWD and SFWPA agreed to share power revenues related to certain power facilities.

The Agreement sorted the responsibilities and actions between SFWPA and NYWD as they
resolved the issues identified in the Order. A final Order from the State Board regarding these
rights is still pending.

NYWD Water Right Permits 11516 and 11518
Water rigl-rts have essentially five fundarnental components as shown in Table l: (l) priority
date; (2) point of diversion and rediversion; (3) diversion rate, tirne, and volume; (4) purpose(s)
of use; and (5) place(s) of use, This section generally describes those water right attributes for
Pennits I 1516 and 1 l5l 8.

Priority Date
The priority date identifies the seniority of the water right as compared to other water rights in a
system. Generally, the older the water right priority date, the more senior the water right is in the
system, and the ntore reliable the water right will be in times of water supply shortage. Permits
ll5l6's and ll5l8's priority dates of 1950 are relatively junior. As such, in times of shortage-
as occurred in 2022 - the right to divert onv woter under these water rights may cease when the



Thc Watcr Group
\\ttrcr. l-ou, rlrri Arh,ocrrcy

State Board issues a curtaihnent order for lack of available water supplies in the Yuba River and
Feather River watersheds.

Points ofDiversion
Permit I 1516 is authorized to divert water from one source. Slate Creek. Permit I l5l8 is
authorized to divert water frorn three sources: the Feather River, the South Fork of the Feather
River, and Lost Creek (tributary to the South Fork Feather River). There are specific points
where water may be diverted and rediverted fi'om these water sources that are depicted on the
map shown in Figure l.

Diversion Rate, Volurne, ond Tiruing
Permit 11516 allows for diversion fi'om Slate Creek and Permit 11518 allows diversion from
Lost Creek, South Fork Feather River. and Feather River. The times of year that water may be
diverted to storage as compared to directly diverted and rediverted vary. Nevertheless, pursuant
to the Order, the total amount of water that can be diverted and used under Permits I l5l6 and
I I 5l 8 may not exceed 23,700 acre-feet per year.

Figure 1: Points of Diversion for Permits 11516 and 11518



The Water Group
\\ttl r:r- l-au, and Arh,ocrrcl

Purpose o./'Use

Permits 11516 and ll5l8 may be used formunicipal. domestic, industrial, and irrigation uses.
Both Permit ll5l6 and ll5l8 have specific limitations on the locations forvarious purposes of
use (as described in next section) but the allowable uses are generally broad.

Place of'U,se

Permits I l5l6 and 1 l5l8 may be used fbr municipal, domestic, and industrial purposes within
the boundaries of the NYWD and for irrigation purposes in NYWD and specific mapped
locations in Yuba County. Perm it I I 5 1 8 water may also be used in Yuba City. Figure 2 below
depicts the place ofuse qualifications under Permits I l5l6 and 1 1518.

License 12984
The SWRCB-issued appropriative water right, License 12984, allows for direct diversion fi'om
Dry Creek in Yuba County (tributary to the Yuba River). This right has a priority date of August
12,1922 and the purpose of use under this License is for irrigation and fire protection uses.
NYWD can divert 21 .4 cubic feet per second (cfs) fi'orn Dry Creek from April I to October I 5
for a total volume of 6,060 acre-feet per year.

LEGEND

County Boundary

I Reservolrs

- 
Rivers aM Creeks

Permit 11516
f-l North Yuba Water District

L 
-l Irrlgation Place ot Use

Permit 11518
T-.l Noth Yuba Water District

lffi yuba City Boundary

l-J Irrtgation Place of Use

Figure 2: Place of Use Under Permits 11516 and 11518



The Water Group
\\/r/lcl' l'-rt'u, arrrl Arh,ocrtct,

The place of use under License 12984 is limited by the purpose of use. For fire protection and
irrigation, the place of use includes 3,064 acres within the 4,481-acre area of Improvement
District No. I of North Yuba Water District. Figure 3 below shows the point of diversion for
License 12984 as well as the township, range, and sections that are described in the License to
distinguish the area of place of use.

Figure 3: License 12984 Point of Diversion and Place of Use

Statement of Diversion and Use - 5O227O1,

NYWD's pre- l9l4 appropriative right clairn frorn Oroleve Creek has a priority date of I 860.
NYWD filed the Initial Statement of Diversion in 20 I 2 through an assignment of rights fi'om
SFWPA as paft of the Forbestown Ditch quitclaim as described in the Agreement. NYWD's
water right claim is for direct diversion at a rate of 6.68 cfs fi'orn Oroleve Creek for detivery to
NYWD's service area. The purpose of use under this right is for domestic and irrigation
purposes. Figure 4 below shows the point of diversion on Oroleve Creek and the place of use fbr
the pre- I 914 water right. The water supply f rom this water right claim is distributed primarily
through the Forbestown Ditch.

LEGEND

County Boundary

I ucense 12984 POD

I Reservoirs

- 
Rivers and Creeks

i.- ) Townshlp Range

I*-l Secttons

l--l North yuba water District



The Water Group
\\/ arcr Lav, and Adv ocacy

Figure 4: SODU 5022701Point of Diversion and place of Use

Licenses 10939, 10940, and 10941
NYWD and SFWPA jointly hold Water Right Licenses 10939, 10940, and lO94l . These rhree
water rights may only be used for power production - a non-consumptive water use (there are no
consumptive uses tied to these water rights). They may diverted from January I through
December 3l each year fiom various locations and are used to produce power in Sly Creek,
Woodleaf, Forbestown, and Kelly Ridge power plants. The points of diversion are shown in
Figure 5.

LEGEND

County Boundary

i sozzzor poo

I Reservoirs

- 
Rivers and Creeks

Place of Use

[-] t'torth Yuba Water Distrtct



The Water Group
Water Law and Advocacy

The Agreement identifies the revenue sharing between NYWD and SFWPA related to these
water assets as well as other cooperative aspects. like cost accounting, that would affect the
utility of these assets for NYWD and SFWPA.

Summary
NYWD's seven water assets are the primary possessions that warrant NYWD's formation and
continued operation. Water asset preservation requires reasonably and beneficially using water
in line with Article X, Section 2 of California's Constitutional mandate while ensuring customers
receive water assets to meet their needs. Accordingly, preservation of NYWD's water asset
portfolio requires diligent actions by its Board and managernent to accomplish these mutually
dependent purposes. The near-tenn preservation actions should focus on irnproving diversion
and delivery efficiency (and reducing waste) for allwater assets while expanding deliveries and
consumptive uses alxong NYWD's customer base. Moreover, NYWD should solidif, its
revenue sharing relationship with SFWPA as it applies to its jointly held water assets as

described in the Agreernent. AII of these actions will require securing adequate flnding and
effectively deploying capital to meet NYWD's water asset preservation and revenue objectives.
The water assets contained in NYWD's portfolio require diligent protection to ensure their
prolonged security for current and future NYWD customers.

Figure 5: Licenses 10939, 10940, and 10941 Points of Diversion

TEGEND

o NYWD SFWPA
lont Rights

I Reseruors

- 
Ri\ers and Geeks

t r rifie,r :(ltr'il

Sllnr.rl Il):): . Lill|, (ir,r!! \.rnllrli'

ll.!rr, !r:ulil l'(,i1. llif(:t::rn\ !):rI,
l;lt (.,, 1r1 ll,rlr, li I l),: (:rr\,!. llij[]
.tili I 't';{)
IJil:tJi,ii Ir.i)., !.{)rl;:r\l{I,I I,.!r..
K(,lii li r:q-P l'.,'.

Sa.rilr l:orl, l:cnlrLr lllvar
E I r)51 Crr:rr\

I

Sourias: Sr)u!h lilk l rtith{t:
I{iv.r i\ Lr;sl Orrrt
Sllnrc(l l'0Ds. S({rtll I.rnl.
l)ir(fst)n l)drn, ti)r: (:r|,r!. l),1n,
Idrl)rskr?il ll,vPtsx)il I)itnl, *q

,'{n)rJ(trirsd l)ivilistor l).rtl

l,,, ir'.r itl()lLi
Si,.raa: S nla Cr..r.l,
Sirrrrrl irf)l) -:llit,: (.r!rtl,
l)r!,,;\,r)n lltrrr
.r/.lil,r I 

(ll0

S !, (.ir1ri. i,.l'., \'.1)r,rrl,,itl l).1).,
I'(trlnrslr)rxr l,.l'., X|lli,iitlil, l,.l,. .



elgY,gJg.,
Elevate Public Relations and Marketing, LLC., LLC.

Agency Services Agreement

This agreement ("Agreement") is made between North Yuba Water District("Client")with
a principal place of business at 8691 La Porte Road, Brownsville, CA, and Elevate Public
Relations and Marketing, LLC., LLC. (the "Agency") (collectively referred to as the
"Parties"), with a principal place of business at 308 Evelyn Ct., Roseville, CA 95678.

1. Services to Be Performed

The Agency agrees to perform the services described in Exhibit A, which is
attached to this Agreement.

2. Payment

Exhibit A, attached hereto, identify the monthly payments for specific services
Agency will provide, and a total for those services per year ($1002 per month total).
Any work performed for services that are not are not specified in this Agreement
will be estimated, approved by Client, and paid at $150 per hour. pR work beyond
2 hours per month will be billed at $150 per hour. Hourly work will be billed at 0.1
hour (six minute) increments, Payments should be directed to Elevate Public
Relations and Marketing, LLC., LLC., 308 Evelyn Ct., Roseville, CA 95678. Federal
Tax lD # 47-4311191

3. Expenses

Client shall reimburse Agency for the following expenses attributable directly to
work performed under this Agreement: mileage per existing District policy; air
travel; and lodging if necessary to perform under this contract, per General
Manager's approval. Agency shall submit an itemized statement of Agency's
expenses. Client shall pay Agency within 30 days after receipt of each statement.

4. Vehicles and Equipment

The Agency will furnish all vehicles, equipment, tools, and materials used to
provide the services required by this Agreement.

5. lndependent Contractor Status:

The Parties agree that the Agency and Agency staff are not employees of the
Client and are not authorized to act on behalf of Client except as outlined in this
agreement. Agency is an independent contractor, and neither Agency nor
Agency's employees or contract personnel are, or shall be deemed, Client's

Page 1 of 5



elsJ,glg*
employees. !n its capacity as an independent contractor, Agency agrees and
represents, and Client agrees, as follows:

. The Agency shall not be treated as employees for state tax and federal tax
purposes with respect to the services performed pursuant to this
agreement.

. The Agency will not be entitled to any fringe benefits, including but not
limited to unemployment insurance, workers compensation insurance,
medical insurance, pension plans, or other such benefits that would be
offered to regular employees.

. Agency has the right to perform services for others during the term of this
Agreement. However, if there is a possible conflict of interest, Agency shall
inform Client prior to engaging in that business relationship.

. Agency has the sole right to control and direct the means, manner, and
method by which the services required by this Agreement will be performed.
Agency shall select the routes taken, starting and quitting times, days of
work, and order the work is performed.

. Agency has the right to hire assistants as subagencys or to use employees
to provide the services required by this Agreement.

o Neither Agency nor Agency's employees or contract personnel shall be
required to wear any uniforms provided by Client.

. The services required by this Agreement shall be performed by Agency,
Agency's employees, or contract personnel, and Client shall not hire,
supervise, or pay any assistants to help Agency.

o Neither Agency nor Agency's employees or contract personnel shall receive
any training from Client in the professional skills necessary to perform the
services required by this Agreement.

o Neither Agency nor Agency's employees or contract personnel shall be
required by Client to dLvote full time to the performance of the services
required by this Agreement.

6. Business Licenses, Permits, and Gertificates

The Agency represents and warrants that the Agency and the Agency's employees
and contract personnel will comply with all federal, state, and local laws requiring
drivers and other licenses, business permits, and certificates required to carry out
the services to be performed under this Agreement.

7. State and Federal Taxes

Client will not withhold FICA (Social Security and Medicare taxes) from the
Agency's payments or make FICA payments on the Agency's behalf. The Client
will not make state or federal unemployment compensation contributions on the
Agency's behalf or withhold state or federal income tax from the Agency's

Page 2 of 5



els,Y,gJP*
payments. The Agency shal! pay all taxes incurred while performing services under
this Agreement-including all applicable income taxes and, if the Agency is not a
corporation, self-employment (Social Security) taxes. Upon demand, Contractor
shall provide client with proof that such payments have been made.

8. lnsurance

Other than Errors and Omissions insurance coverage for purposes of the mutual
indemnification agreement, described below, Client shall not provide insurance
coverage of any kind for the Agency or the Agency's employees or contract
personnel,

9, lndemnification

Each party shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the other party, its officers,
directors, members, employees and agents, and each of them, from and against
any and all actions, causes of action, claims, demands, losses, damages,
expenses or liabilities of whatsoever kind and nature including settlement and
defense costs, judgments, interest and reasonable attorney's fees, and all other
costs, expenses and charges that it incurs or may incur for any reason resulting or
arising from acts or omissions or the performance or breach of this Agreement,
except where caused by its gross negligence, intentional misconduct or criminal
acts or omissions. Each party shall promptly notify the other party of adverse
claims, demands or lawsuits (threatened or actual) and will provide cooperation to
the extent possible to the other party, its attorneys and agents. Both Parties
warrant that they possess errors and omissions insurance coverage to satisfy this
indemnity agreement.

10.Term of Agreement

This agreement is from November 6,2023 - November 1,2024.

1 1. Terminating the Agreement

Either party may terminate this Agreement at any time by giving 30 days'written
notice to the other party of the intent to terminate, with emailed notice considered
effective delivery of notice.

12. Entire Agreement

The Parties agree that this Agreement is the entire Agreement between the Parties
pertaining to the services described in this Agreement, superseding all prior oral
or written agreements between the Parties, and that this Agreement can be altered
or modified only through a writing signed and dated by authorized representative
of both parties,

Page 3 of 5



elsJ,gJg,,..
l3.Resolving Disputes

The Parties agree that, if any dispute arises between them pertaining to this
Agreement, the venue for any dispute resolution activity shall be Brownsville,
California. The Parties agree to first try to resolve the dispute with the help of a
mutually agreed-upon mediator. Any costs and fees other than attorney fees
associated with the mediation shall be shared equally by the Parties. lf mediation
does not resolve the dispute through a settlement agreement within 90 days from
either Party requesting Mediation, the Parties agree to submit their dispute to
binding arbitration conducted according to the rules of the American Arbitration
Association. The arbitrator's decision may be entered as a judgment by the Yuba
County Superior Court. The costs of conducting the arbitration, including
application fees, venue charges, and fees charged by the arbitrator, will be shared
equally by the Parties. Both Parties shall bear their own attorney fees and any
other costs associated with advocating their positions before the Arbitrator.

14. Confidentiality

The Agency acknowledges that it will be necessary for Client to disclose certain
confidential and proprietary information to the Agency for the Agency to perform
duties under this Agreement. The Agency acknowledges that disclosure to a third
party or misuse of this proprietary or confidential information would irreparably
harm Client. Accordingly, The Agency will not disclose or use, either during'or after
the term of this Agreement, any proprietary or confidential information of Client
without CIient's prior written permission except to the extent necessary to perform
services on Client's behalf, Upon termination of Agency's services to Client, or at
Client's request, Agency shall deliver to Client all materiats in Contractor's
possession relating to Client's business. The Parties agree that all intellectual
property created under this agreement, including but not limited to copyright and
trademark, shall be Client's property.

15. No Partnership

This Agreement does not create a partnership relationship. The Agency does not
have, and shall not make representations of having, authority to enter into
contracts on Client's behalf.

1 6.Assignment and Delegation

The Agency may not assign or subcontract any rights or delegate any of its duties
under this Agreement without Client's prior written approval.

lT.Applicable Law

Page 4 of 5



elsJ,gJg*
This Agreement will be governed by California law, without giving effect to conflict
of laws principles.

18. lnvalid Provisions

lf any provision of this Agreement is held by an adjudicative tribunal of competent
jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, that provision shall be severed, and the
remainder of the Agreement shall continue to remain in full force and effect and
shall in no way be impaired or invalidated, unless such invalidity, illegality or
unenforceability is deemed tantamount to a failure of consideration.

19. Counterparts:

This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparls - including but
not limited to counterparls in an electronic format - each of which shall be deemed
an original, but all such counterparts shalltogether constitute but one and the same
document.

20.Authorization to Enter lnto this Agreement

The signators to this Agreement warrant that they are authorized to enter into this
Agreement on behalf of their respective principals.

For Client: Paul Nicholas Bovlan
Printed Name
r'-" 1 

u 
zz/ --- -/' )v' / ;'

Signature

December 5. 2023
Date

For the Agency: Marv Towne. Manaqinq Member

Signature

December 5 2023
Date

47-4311191
Taxpayer lD Number

Page 5 of 5



I{ERR
F.,EDERSi:-.N

RN
ATTORNEYS AT LAW LLP

November 17,2023

vIA ELECTRq ry_rc M4ILL4I_{_D_II.S. Ul\!|i

North Yuba Water District
c/o Paul Boylan, Esq.
8691 Quincy La Porte Rd.
Brownsville, CA 95919
Em ail : pnbovlanfa)srnail. com

Re: l. South Feather Water and Power Agencg us, North Yuba Water District, et al.
Sutter County Superior Court Case No.: CVCS21-0O02073, and
2. Ongoing representation on the applicability of the California Environmental
Quality Act on activities to be undertaken by North Yuba Water District and by
other agencies in which the District has a potential interest

Dear Mr. Boylan:

Thank you for your consideration and expression of confidence in retaining Herr
Pedersen & Berglund LLP, to represent North Yuba Water District ("NYWD") in the
above-referenced matter. It is the recommended practice of the California State Bar that
prior to my undertaking representation of NYWD, we enter into a written fee agreement.
The following sets forth Herr Pedersen & Berglund LLP's policy on retainers and fee
agreements. This letter is to serve as a formal retainer ald fee agreement ("Agreement"),
which will cover the circumstances under which Herr Pedersen & Berglund LLP shail
provide legal representation to NYWD. All of the terms set forth herein are intended to
be subject to negotiation and agreement between the parties. Unless we make a different
agreement in writing, this Agreement will govern all future services that we may perform.

You are also welcome to have this Agreement reviewed by an attorney of your choice in
order to obtain an independent analysis of this Agreement. NYWD should not sign this
Agreement if there are any questions concerning any of the terms and conditions set
forth herein. This Agreement will not take effect, and we will have no obligation to
provide NYWD with legal services, until it has returned a signed copy of this Agreement,

i. Retainer. It is a standard practice of Herr Pedersen &Berglund LLP's policy to
require an initial non-refundable retainer to cover file review and set up; however, no
retainer will be required for this matter.

2. Rates and CharRes. Unless other arrangements are made in writing, all fees
will be charged'on an hourly basis, in minimum units of tenths of an hour, for all work

VISAI,IA
100 WiLLow PLAzA, SUrTE 300

VISALIA, CA 9329I
TELEr,rroNE: (559) 636-0200
F^csrMrLrr: (559) 636-9759

H AN FoRD
I489 LACry Bour,EvARD, SurrE 103

HANFORD, CA 93230
TDr.!PHoNE: (559) 4 I 0-8560
FACSTMTLE: (559) 4I0-8922

WWW-HPBI,AW.NET



Paul Boylan
{1) South Feather Water and Power Agency us. North Yuba Water Distict, et al. and (2)
angoing Representation of CEQA Actiuities
November 17,2023
Page 2 of 5

expended on behalf of NYWD by each attorney or paraprofessional at his or her current
hourly rate. This normally includes meetings, phone calls, document preparation,
research, travel and correspondence. My current billing rate is $SSO.OO per hour, and
associates bill at the rate of $250.00 per hour. Our paraprofessionals bilf at the rate of
$125.00 per hour. Rates are periodicatly adjusted. I contemplate that I will perform
most of the attorney work on the file, but I will refer matters to other attorneys or
paraprofessiona-ls in our office if I feel they could better serve NywD.

In addition to the fees for legal seruices rendered, NortJr Yuba Water District wiil be
responsible for a1l out-of-pocket expenses which Herr Pedersen & Berglund LLp incurs
on behalf of NYWD and for other costs such as filing and recording fees, document
production, word processing, reproduction charges, messenger charges, on-line legal
research and travel expenses. In the event the amount of a required charge or expense
is substantial (i.e., deposition transcript costs, expert witness fees, etc.) Hlrr pedersen
& Berglund LLP's policy is to request payment for these expenses in advance from
MWD; however, we agree that NYWD can pay these expenses as they are accrued on a
monthly basis. As these expenses accrue, they will be added to the monthly bills and
therelore become paut of the billing cycle as set forth in section 3 (Billing Cycle), If a
statement is not paid monthly, we reserve the right to discontinue performing further
services anytime thereafter, regardless of the status of the matter at such time.

3. Eilliry C1IcIE. Herr Pedersen & Berglund LLP's normal biliing cycle runs from
approximately the first day of the month to the last day of the month. A11 bills are due
and payable in full within 3O days from the date of the bill. Although the bill is normally
printed by computer, it is reviewed by the responsible attorney before being sent. if
NYWD has any objection to any charge set forth in tJ.e bill, NYWD should notify my
office within 60 days of the date the bill is dated. If NYWD does not contact rny of{ice
within 60 days of the date the bill is dated, then NYWD agrees with all of the "h*ge"set forth in the bill. If NYWD desires bills more frequently than once a month, *e 'ritt
attempt to accommodate that request.

4, Lecs Not-Qantlailent. Because our fees are based upon the time devoted to a
matter, the fees are not contingent upon the legal or financial outcome of a matter or
project. While we take pride in the quality of our legal work and will merl<e every effort
to see that NYWD is satisfied with our services, its obligation to pay is not conditioned
upon results obtained from our services.

5. Dis::UICS_SULrlqittEd_lSl&lIIAliqn, Any controversy or claim in law or equity
arising under this Agreement or in connection with the provision of legal services by the
attorneys and staff of Herr Pederson & Berglund LLP, including without ar:y limitation,
any claim for breach of contract, professional negligence or breach of fiduciary duty,
pa5rrnent for legal fees and quality of legal services shall be resolved by binding
arbitration, in accordance with the California Arbitration Act (California Code of Civil



Paul Boylar
(1) South Feather Water and Power Agencg us. North Yuba Water District, et al. and. (2)
Ongoing Representation of CEQA Actiuities
November 17,2023
Page 3 of 5

Procedure section 1280 et, a1.), except as provided by California law for judicial review
of arbitration proceedings, The losing party shall pay the arbitrator's fees and t; e
prevalling pa-rty is entitled to reasonable attorney's fees and related expenses incurred
in bringing such proceeding in addition to obtaining and enforcing a judgmegt.

It is agreed that the parties hereto sha-ll submit to the jurisdicilon and venue of the
Sutter County, Ca-lifornia, Municipal or Superior Court, whichever is applicable for any
legal proceedings, regardless of your location. F\:rther, NYWD hereby 

^gr..* to accept
service of documents to commence legal proceedings via notice and att<nowledgment'of
receipt.

BY SIGNING BELOW NYWD IS AGREEING TO HAVEANY DISPUTE, INCLUDING A FEE
DISPUTE OR MALPRACTICE CLAIM, ARISING OUT OF THE MATTERS INCLUDED iN
THIS AGREEMENT DECIDED BY NEUTRAL ARBITRATION AS PROVIDED BY
CALIFORNIA LAW AND NYWD IS GIVING UP ANY RIGHTS NTWD MIGHT POSSESS TO
HAVE THE DISPUTE LITIGATED IN A COURT OR JURY TRIAL. BY SIGNING BELOW
NYWD IS GIVING UP ANY RIGHTS YOU MIGHT POSSESS TO HAVE THE DISPUTE
LITIGATED IN APPEAL, UNLESS SUCH zuGHTS ARE SPECIFICALLY INCLUDED IN
THIS PROVISION. IF NYWD REFUSES TO SUBMIT TO ARBITRATION AFTER
AGREEING TO THIS PROVISiON, NYWD MAY BE COMPELLBD TO ARBITRATE UNDER
THE AUTHORITY OF CALIFORNIA CODE OF CIVIL PROCBDURE. ALL ARBITRATION
PROCEEDINGS HEREIN SHALL BE PURSUED PRIVATELY AND NEITHER PARTY
SHALL PUBLICIZE THE FACT OF, OR THE DECISION OF ANY SUCH ARBITRATION,
EXCEPT AS THE SAME MAY BE REQUIRED BY LAW OR FOR THE PURPOSE OF
PURSING THE RIGHTS OF JUDICIAL REVIEW, BY SIGNING BELOW NYWD
REPRESENTS THAT }[yWD HAS ENTERED INTO THIS ARBITRATION PROVISION OF
ITS OWN VOLITION.

6. Sery:Se-_C-hB{gA q_q PaF*t Dqq.4SSeUEt!. As stated above, invoices for iegal
services rendered are due within 30 days from the date of the bill. ANY ACCOUNT NOT
PAID PRiOR TO THE NEXT INVOICE DATE WILL INCUR A MONTHLY FINANCE
CHARGE ON THE UNPAID BALANCE COMPUTED AT THE RATE OF 18 PERCENT
ANNUAL PERCENTAGE RATE (1 % PERCENT PER MONTH). We figure the finance
charge on its account by applying the periodic rate of 7.5''/o per month to the "adjusted
balance" of the account. We get the "adjusted balance" by taking the ba-lance owed at
the end of the previous billing cycle and subtracting any payments and cred.its received
during the present billing cycle.

If arry checks are returned for insufficient funds, the account will be charged a penalty
fee of $20.00 per returned check,

7, Lien. Finally, a lien against your file is hereby granted to this firm in the event
I{YWD owes Herr Pedersen & Berglund LLP any money for attorney's fees or costs.



Paul Boylan
(1) South Feather Water and Potuer Agencg us. NorthYuba Water District, et at. and. (2)
Ongoing Representation of CEQA Actiuities
November 17,2023
Page 4 of 5

8. No Guarantees. Herr Pedersen & Berglund LLP cannot give NYWD any
guarantees or make any representations as to the exact amount NYWD will incur for
fees and costs in matters that we handle for NYWD. The amount of time necessary to
handle any given matter depends on the complexity of the issues involved and, to a large
degree, on the posture and actions of other parties. Because of such inherent
uncertainties, NYWD understands that although we may give NYWD good faith
estimates from time to time, they are no more than that -- merely estimates -- and are
not binding unless we have specifically agreed in writing to a maximum or flat fee,

9. DiSpqs-lliSn*9f Fi!e.s,. NYWD agrees to pick up all files within 90 days of the
conclusion of Herr Pedersen & Berglund LLP's representation or the conclusion of any
specific litigation matter. In the event the files are not picked up following the firmis
written notice of its intent concerning such files, then Herr Pedersen & Berglund LLp
can either confidentially destroy the files or charge NYWD for storage of the files.

If NYWD has any questions or comments regarding the matters in this letter, please
contact me and I would be pleased to discuss it with NYWD. If the terms and conditions
of this Agreement are satisfactory to NYWD, please indicate your agreement by executing
this Agreement where indicated below. Thereafter, please return the Agreement.

Thank you very much for your cooperation and I look forward. to working with you.

Very truly yours,

HERR PEDERSEN & BERGLUND LLP

f,-e,uL^
Leonard C. Herr

LCHIbpa



Paul Boylan
11) South Feather Water and Power Agency us. North Yuba Water District, et at, and (2)
Ongoing Representation of CEQA Actiuities
November 17,2023
Page 5 of 5

The undersigned has read the foregoing Agreement, understands the same an6 agrees
to be bound by the terms and conditions hereof.

DATED: November 17, 2023

2023,1 l.l6 Fc( Agrccmcnt

{-;- ?ay, / *--'/Z:Ja
PAUL NICHOLAS BOYLAN
Counsel for North Yuba Water
District


